
M E M O R A N D U M    
 
 

             

         Date: 09/15/2020 

 

To: City Manager Steve McHarris, City Attorney Chris Diaz 

CC: City Clerk Mary Lavelle  

 

Subject: City Council Events 

From: Councilmember, Karina Dominguez  

 

Background:  

 During the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget development process, the City Council expressed an interest in 

individual Councilmembers having the ability and funding to host events that benefit the City and the 

Milpitas community, and to use City facilities for this purpose.   

The proposed Council policy for events establishes City policy, guidelines and conditions for the use of 

funds appropriated to individual members of the City Council for hosting events, donating to 

intergovernmental agencies, faith base organizations, Neighborhood Associations, non-profit 

organizations and other agencies providing a free service in Milpitas and are requesting fee waivers for 

events. These events support the City Council’s priorities and shall not be related to campaigning or any 

other political advocacy efforts and shall generally serve a public purpose. 

On November 5, 2019 a draft policy came before Council and feedback was provide to staff in order to 

bring back a policy with modifications. The final proposal for council consideration and approval can be 

found in attachment 1 of this memo. 

The City of Milpitas’ Facility Use Manual is the guiding document for the general use and rules of the 

City’s Indoor and Outdoor facilities, fields and parks (Facility). At the Special City Council Budget Study 

Session on March 12, 2019, Council directed staff to bring back modifications to the Facility Use Manual 

that would enable the use of City facilities by City Councilmembers for non-campaign related community 

programs and events. These modifications are located on pages 4-8 of the Manual. A copy of the full 

manual can be here: http://www.ci.milpitas.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/Facility-Manual-

Updated-062016-FINAL.pdf  



 

 

 

Analysis: 

The Approved Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget includes funding in the amount of $25,000 for the City 

Council ($5,000 for each member of the Council) to make donations to intergovernmental agencies and 

non-profit organizations and to approve fee waivers for events and for individual Councilmembers to 

either host his/her own events or to donate to additional events and provide fee waivers, distinct from 

those submitted per the adopted policy – City Council Donations and Fee Waiver/Reduction Policy are 

regulated by Council policy 01-07.  

Per this policy, all requests for events and fee waivers or donations for  organizations providing a public 

service in Milpitas shall continue to be brought forward for Council consideration. 

Based on prior council direction and feedback we are proposing the following council policy for city 

sponsored events, please see attachment 1: 

Under the California Constitution, Article XVI, Section 6, there is a prohibition on the gift of public funds 

unless there is a documented public purpose.  Further, California Government Code Section 8314 

prohibits the use of public resources, including land and facilities, for campaign related purposes.   

City Councilmembers wishing to host a program or event in a City-owned Facility could implement a 

request and approval process as part of the City of Milpitas Facility Use Manual, as long as the proposed 

program or event is non-campaign related and has a wide-reaching public purpose serving the Milpitas 

community at large.   

To ensure compliance with state law and City Council policy, the review and approval of a 

Councilmember’s request to host a program or event in a City-owned Facility would go through a 

process ensuring the documentation of public purpose, availability of facility space, and approval of 

funds associated with the use of a City-owned Facility by the City Council. City Councilmember requests 

would be submitted on a request form to: 1) describe the proposed program or event scope, 2) state 

additional community partners, 3) explain how the event aligns with a city priority and 4) select a date 

that is not currently reserved by another group or departments. The request form would be reviewed by 

the City Attorney’s office and City Manager’s office for public purpose review and determination of an 

available facility. Once reviewed, the request would be agendized for a future City Council meeting for 

approval.   

The revocation of an approval to a City Councilmember could occur if the use of the City facility violates 

state law of if the use is inconsistent with the Councilmember’s written request. 

The final language to update the City of Milpitas Facility Use Manual can be found in attachment 2 of 

this memo. 

 

 Fiscal Impact No additional funding is needed at this time.   



 

 


